HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
May 18, 2003
7:07 P. M

TAPE HFC 03 — 102, Side A
TAPE HFC 03 - 102, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Harris called the House Finance Conmttee neeting
to order at 7:07 P.M

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative John Harris, Co-Chair
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representative Bill Stoltze
Representative Ji m Wi taker

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Carl Mses

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Thomas Wagoner; Steve Porter, Deputy Conm ssioner,
Departnent of Revenue

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Dan Dickinson, Director, Dwvision of Gl and Gas Audit,
Departnent of Revenue; Mark Meyers, Director, D vision of
Ol and Gas, Departnent of Natural Resources, Anchorage

SUMVARY

CSSB 185( FI N)
An Act providing for a reduction of royalty on certain
oi | produced from Cook Inlet subnmerged [and, and for a
credit for certain exploration expenses against oil and
gas properties production taxes on oil and gas produced
froma | ease or property in the state.

CS SB 185 (FIN) was HEARD and HELD in Conmttee for
further consideration.

House Fi nance Committee 1 05/18/03 7: 07 PM



#SB185
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 185(FIN)

An Act providing for a reduction of royalty on certain
oi | produced from Cook Inlet subnerged [and, and for a
credit for certain exploration expenses against oil and
gas properties production taxes on oil and gas produced
froma | ease or property in the state.

SENATOR THOVAS WAGONER presented an overview of SB 185. He
stated that the bill would anend statutes to provide for
reduction of royalty on oil produced in certain Cook Inlet
fields and platforns as they near the end of their
production capability.

The intent of the legislation is to provide a nonetary
incentive in the form of royalty relief to help maxim ze
production fromold fields and extend the | ongevity of Cook
Inlet oil platforns. In return, there would be continued
enploynment in the area. Additionally, there could be
production that otherw se would not be realized because the
fields wll beconme nore econom cal due to reduced costs. He
added that it would result in nore oil production than
originally realized, subsequently nore unexpected royalty
revenues even at the reduced rate.

Senat or \Wagoner added that encouraging production in the
margi nal fields could extend their life by 18 to 24 nonths.
SB 185 also offers an exploration severance tax credit to
explorers for work performed on or after July 1, 2003 and
before July 1, 2007.

At present tinme, the maximum tax credits for exploration in
Al aska results in costs of about 65 cents on the dollar; a
nunber that conpares poorly with the credits received from
our Canadi an conpetitors. Alaska is at the bottom of the
list in terms of exploration credits. The bill provides a
40% tax credit for exploration applied against severance
taxes, reducing costs in Al aska to 39 cents.

Senat or WAagoner pointed out the Cost of Exploration chart in
nmenber's packets, concluding that the bill provides “bold
step” in making Al aska a mgjor player in the world nmarket.
(Copy on File).

Representati ve Berkow tz asked what a “bottom hol e” was.

MARK  MEYERS, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), DI RECTOR
DVISION OF OL AND GAS, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
ANCHORAGE, expl ained that a bottom hole is an area that is
not on the path and based on the survey is the area in the

bottom of the well. For the purposes of describing a three-
mle area, the bottomhole |ocation is where the bit finally
ends in the bottom of the well. The bottom hole |ocation

House Fi nance Committee 2 05/18/03 7: 07 PM



will typically be in a different |location than the surface
| ocati on.

Representative Berkowitz asked what “butted’” neant. M.
Meyers explained that “butting” is the actual date that
drilling starts.

Representative Kerttula asked if the producer ~could
directionally “drill out” of the three mles and continue to
use those cal cul ati ons. M. Meyers replied that the three
mles of the bottomhole is used as a point of reference in
t he subsurface. If one well was drilled in one direction
and another in a different direction, both wells would
qualify if their horizontal distance was nore than 3 m|les.
The search | ocation could be the sane | ocati on.

Representative Kerttula asked about existing wells. M.
Meyers expl ained that an existing well was defined as a well
that either was |less than 15 years old or greater than 150
days ol d. The older exploration wells would not be
consi dered a bottom hol e.

Representative Kerttula asked what would happen if there
were many wells going in around one another and if the 150
days would continue to be reasonable. M. Meyers advised
that would allow for tw conpanies to be drilling
si mul taneously during the season. Mre than one well would
potentially be paid for in the sanme |ocation under the
program and they would all have to be exploration wells.

Representative Kerttula questioned if there was a need for
incentive when a party already knows where the oil is and
that it was worthwhile to drill. M. Meyers responded that
there are other protections contained in the bill. One is
that it cannot be an existing loan gas unit. There are
exanples where earlier discoveries were nade and if the
di scovery was greater than 15 years old, then it would be
consi dered under the bill

DAN DI CKINSON, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), DI RECTOR
DIVISION OF OL AND GAS AUD T, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
ACHORAGE, offered to answer questions of the Commttee. He
noted that Alaska was one of the only places in the world
t hat does not have a program as proposed in the |egislation.

Representative Berkowitz asked why Alaska had not
i npl emented such a program before if it was “such a
uni versal condition”. M. Dickinson responded that the
State did have prior rate credits in place in the royalties
that were used actively in the 1980’ s. Condi ti ons now are

changi ng. It is anticipated that there would only be
drilling where the good wells are |ocated. At present tine,
many of the good areas have been taken. The State is

House Fi nance Committee 3 05/18/03 7: 07 PM



attenpting to create incentives simlar to other areas
around the worl d.

Representative Berkowitz questioned how the proposed
i ncentives would conpare to other worldw de incentives. M.
Di ckinson noted that there was back up in nenber’s packets

that indicate such information. Most projects focus on
expl oration. Once oil is discovered, the conpany wants to
get it to the pipeline. The place where the biggest
difference is made is when oil is found in individual

jurisdictions.

Representative Berkowitz comented that he did not
understand the mechanism M. Dickinson explained the
production sharing agreenent and that for every dollar
produced, if it is reinvested, there will be a |low or no tax

rate on it. The federal governnent would be providing the
35 cents on each dollar for exploration in Al aska. If the
bill passes, then Al aska would be *“kicking in” another 40

cents per dollar per well.

Representative Kerttula agreed that the State needs to
i npact exploration now. She pointed out that the |ist
i ndi cates exploration only and does not indicate the other
taxes or the stability of the other referenced governnents.
She inquired how Alaska currently ranks. M. D ckinson
advi sed that legislators nust |ook at total production costs
and total State pay during these tinmes of high prices.
Alaska is one of the best places in the world for the
conpanies to do business. Although, when prices are |ow,
Al aska is one of the worst places to undertake business. He
stressed that the Legislature nust |ook at pricing, which is
clearly part of the structure.

Representative Kerttula voiced concern with the 40% nunber
and asked for an economc analysis on that determ nation.
M. Dickinson responded that there are two inportant pieces
of anal ysis. He commented on taking the 40% nunber and
adding it to 35% of the federal governnent contribution,
whi ch woul d place Al aska approximately in the mddle. Any

change nust be a bold nove. He acknow edged that the
| egi sl ati on woul d be picking up a significant anount of the
incurred costs. M. Dickinson stressed that drilling wells

is expensive and that it needs to be a significant portion
There are additional docunents that nodel three possible
results.

Senat or WAgoner pointed out that next year, there are three
schedul ed wells on the North Sl ope.

Representative \Witaker understood that the proposed

| egi sl ation was part of a larger program for the continued
oil exploration on the North Slope. M. Myers acknow edged

House Fi nance Committee 4 05/18/03 7: 07 PM



that it is. Representative Witaker added that the proposed
| egi sl ati on was a key conponent to that |arger picture.

Representati ve Berkow tz voi ced concern with the size of the
package and the repercussions. He asked why it had taken so
long to cone before the Legislature if it was such a good
i dea. Senat or \WAgoner responded that Section 3 was the
anendnent to the original bill and that the drafters had
been working on it for several weeks and took that long to
devel op this bill

Representative Berkowi tz pointed out that there is not a | ot
of back up on a bill that involved such a Iot of work. He
reiterated that there is not enough information provided
warranting an informed deci sion.

Co-Chair Harris pointed out that the Governor has indicated
that he is going to push for natural resource devel opnent.
Senat or Wagoner acknow edged that the Governor has indicated
that he wants to grow the econony, which cannot happen
W t hout devel oping resources and this is the first step on

the plan for devel opnent. He spoke about the twenty-five
mle radius, encouraging exploration further out for
exploring and drilling nore renote areas and away from

current production.

Representative Kerttula asked how the Departnent would be
getting the seismc data and when would they be able to use

it. M. Meyers responded that it will be available within
si x nont hs. Under current permtting requirenents, the
State gets the data on all State | ands. On private and
federal |ands, the State does not automatically receive that
dat a. The legislation allows the State to get it, but
allows the applicant six nonths to determne if they want to
use the credit or not. Representative Kerttula clarified
that the Departnent could use the data but could not rel ease
it to public for ten years. M. Meyers agreed that was
correct.

Representative Kerttula reiterated that internally, the
Departnent will be able to have the data but cannot use it
for anything released to the public. M. Meyers replied
that was correct.

Representative Kerttula asked what would happen if the data

indicated that a rich area had been hit. How woul d
exploration be started in that particular area and if that
happened, how would the State receive the credit. She

acknow edged that she supports exploration but is concerned
about the State’ s finances.

M. Meyers responded that there are nultiple issues

contained within the question. The first issue is the
seismc data from new areas, which is suggestive of oil or

House Fi nance Committee 5 05/18/03 7: 07 PM



gas. Only when it is calibrated with well data, can it be

certain and that is not known until it is drilled. The
seismc data provides basic structural information and in
sone cases an i ndi cation of hydr ocar bons. The

productability of the potential reservoirs does not just
happen. The next step would be to encourage soneone to go
inand drill. In the early stages, seismc data was sought
after acquiescing the |ease of an area. In nodern tines, it
is nore typical to shoot before they acquire the |eases and
hel ps in the evaluation of the State land |lease terns. On
federal and private land, the ability to nore effectively
push is provided to open areas that have the highest
potential . The seismc data on the private and federal
|l ands is an inportant planning tool for the State. The data
hel ps the State understand the common use of the facilities
if those fields were produced. He reiterated that the data
is very valuable and an inportant aspect of the bill, which
gets the data distributed.

Representative Kerttula asked if the State adopts the
| egislation and if exploration is begun, would it be fair to
say that the State has done their part by providing the
break wi thout any other royalty reductions. She indicated
it would be a fair trade.

M. Dickinson explained that exploration is only a piece of
the process. He thought that once that area is found, they
woul d pay close to 12.25% However, other incentives are

needed. It is inmportant to have a wide variety of tools.
He pointed out that it is inportant that the dry holes also
receive credits, as drilling a dry whole 1is risky

expl oration.

Representative Hawker questioned the nechanics of the

credit. He asked if they were transferable wth no
expiration date. M. Meyer replied that was correct. The
credits trade at about 95 cents to the dollar. He pointed

out that there are three conpanies that have sent checks to
the State in the range of $20 mllion dollars. There are
only four players that currently can take the credit. The
| egi sl ati on would open it up to a whole new set of players.
He clarified that Section A indicates that the credit cannot
be taken until July 1, 2004. It will have no effect in
FY04, but the work can be done in FYO03.

Represent ati ve Hawker enphasized that the utilization of any
credits could not commence until July 1, 2004. M. Meyers
agreed and pointed out that the work would have to be done
before July 1, 2007. A four-year w ndow has been created.
There is no sunset on when the credit could be used.

Representative Hawker commented on the transferability and

that the drillers do not have to be producers. M. Meyer
advi sed that was correct. The intent is to bring other

House Fi nance Committee 6 05/18/03 7: 07 PM



producers in. They would still have to create their own
f undi ng. If the work was previously contracted for, they
woul d not get the incentive. There i1s specific |anguage
addr essi ng that concern.

Represent ati ve Hawker understood that was the May 13th, 2003
dat e. M. Meyer added that before July 1st, they could
qualify. Once the plans are in effect, that would determ ne
devel opnent .

Representati ve Hawker asked about the wutilization of the
credits. He wunderstood that comencing July 1, 2004,
qualifying production could offset their entire nonthly
liability using whatever credits are avail able. M. Meyer
acknow edged that was correct. They could use their entire
nonthly liability for the severance tax; they would also
have:

. Monthly royalty paynents,
. Quarterly inconme tax paynents, and
. Annual property tax paynents.

Representative Hawker clarified that it would only be the
severance tax. He asked if there had been consideration on
how to “soften the blow to the treasury” by perhaps all ow ng
the off set on % of the nonthly liability of the producer
M. Meyer responded that HB 61 would create a credit for
certain activities in Cook Inlet, indicating that not nore
than 50% could be taken in one year. The Departnent did
consider that, however, in the context, the type of credits
expected woul d be taken in three consecutive nonth packages.
Because of the nonthly tax, carrying it forward would stil
show in the sane fiscal year.

Representati ve Hawker comment ed on t he qual i fyi ng
expenditures. He asked if there was a rule of thunb of how

much the oil well costs and how nuch each drill site would
generate a credit. M. D ckinson responded that a conpany
could find a wde variety in Alaska. The types of well

bei ng referenced are 25-m | es beyond t he near est
infrastructure and typically run in the $25 nmillion dollar
range. M. Meyers agreed that it was a wide range. Typica
exploration costs on the low end are at about $3 mllion
dollars and the high costs woul d anpbunt to approximately $25
mllion dollars. Realistically, they could get nmultiple
wells froma single path, so the individual well costs goes
dramatically dowmn. A good rule of thunb for a dry hol e cost
woul d be $12 nmillion dollars.

Representative Hawker asked if the State had any offshore

projects that would qualify for this. M. Meyers replied
there are. Exanpl es would be using the offshore drilling

House Fi nance Committee 7 05/18/03 7: 07 PM



equi pnrent. A well wusing that tool would cost in the upper
end of the $25 million dollar range.

M. Dickinson added that if the drilling were nore than
twenty mles offshore, at sone point it would be on federa
| and.

Representative Hawker asked if a single well could be in
excess of $100 million dollars. M. Myers stated that was
correct and that offshore wells are ones that approach that
price range. Another place where that could be applicable
would be State waters around Cook Inlet. The i ndividual
wel | costs could run high but if they were open to a nmulti-
cost program the costs could decline.

Representative Berkow tz asked about work that is schedul ed
for this sumer that has already been permtted. M. Myer
commented that the State has sone ideas of the permtting.
The conpanies that want to have additional comm tnents have
not conpleted their budget outlines until typically late in
the fall.

Representative Berkowtz asked why the State would give
al ready schedul ed work, incentives to do sonething that they
are already going to do. He stated that is a “give away”.

STEVE PORTER, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE,
explained that they only do sunmer fi el dwork. They cannot
do seismc activity on the slope in the sumertine. Mst of
the conpany’s cycles for permtting happen in the late fall.

Representative Berkowitz reiterated that there are conpanies
that are already commtted to doing work during “x” periods
of time. He questioned the incentive. M. Porter responded
that there are only a few wells wth nultiple-year
commtnments, which is a unique circunstance. Expl orati on
progranms are generally year-to-year. He did not know of any
approved wells at this tine.

M. Meyers added that the conmttee process has not been
conpleted on any of the wells. There are tentative plans
that would be eligible for the credits and the credits could
|l ead to additional drillings. He admtted that there was a
risk for the first year plan but it is anticipated that
there will be nore investnent in the State. That is the
bal ance and the risk taken. M. Dickensen observed that it
woul d be detrinmental to delay one year’s drilling season.

Representative Berkowitz requested further tine to |ook at
the bill in order to review the consequences.

Senat or WAgoner rem nded nenbers that the conpanies that do
the exploration, operate on tine budgets also and that nost

House Fi nance Committee 8 05/18/03 7: 07 PM



of the noney for next year’s operations is being negotiated
at this tine.

TAPE HFC 03 - 102, Side B

Senat or WAgoner rem nded nenbers that those conpanies are
currently negotiating worldw de on exploration ideas.

Representative Kerttula referenced Page 7, Lines 8-10,
pointing out the July 1st, 2003 date, the date that the
boundaries would be set. She asked if that would still
“roll” and what would happen with a unit after that date.
M. Meyers replied that the length of a credit is four
years. The only exception mght be in certain areas of
Nati onal Petrol eum Reserve-Al aska (NPR-A), where many are
within the 25-mle zone. Realistically, the unit nust be
formed and in those cases, the negotiated work permt would
take into consideration the credits. He added that it is
not likely that there will be any new units.

Representative Kerttula asked if there was a sunset pushing
that concern. M. Myers replied it was.

Co-Chair Harris stated that the bill wwuld be HELD in
Commttee for further consideration.

Senat or Wagoner acknowl edged that there had been simlar
concerns voiced on the Senate side. He added that SB 185
was a “jobs” bill and would get people back to work. He
encour aged passage of the bill

SB 185 was HELD in Conmmttee for further consi deration.
#

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 8:00 P. M

House Fi nance Committee 9 05/18/03 7: 07 PM



